
 
 

 

 
Cumbria Police and Crime Panel 
 

 
Friday, 9 July 2021 at 10.00 am (please note revised start 

time) 

 

 

VENUE: Conference Room A/B, Cumbria House, 
Botchergate, Carlisle, CA1 1RD  

 

AGENDA 

 
PLEASE NOTE THERE WILL BE A PRIVATE BRIEFING FOR THE 

PANEL AT 9.30 AM 
 

   

1   ELECTION OF CHAIR 
 

To elect a Chair of the Panel for the ensuing year. 
  

 

2   ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR 

 

To elect a Vice-Chair of the Panel for the ensuing year. 
  

 

3   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
To receive any apologies for absence. 

  
 

4   MEMBERSHIP 

 
To note any changes in membership of the Panel. 

  
 

5   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
To receive any declarations of interest. 

  
 



 

 

 

6   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded 
from the meeting during consideration of any item on the 

Agenda. 
  

 

7   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

To receive any items of public participation. 
 

(Questions and petitions must be received in writing by 
Lynn Harker, Senior Democratic Services Officer at least seven 

working days before the date of the Panel meeting). 
  

 

8   MINUTES 
 

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Panel held on 18 March 2021 (copy enclosed). 

(Pages 5 - 14) 
 

 

9   CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER'S ANNUAL 

REPORT 2020-21 

 
To receive a report from the Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner (copy enclosed). 
(Pages 15 - 22) 

 
 

10   POLICE AND CRIME PLAN FOR CUMBRIA 
 

To consider a report from the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner (copy enclosed). 

(Pages 23 - 26) 

 
 

11   CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL CHAIRMAN'S 
ANNUAL REPORT 2019-21 

 
To consider a report by the Chairman, Cumbria Police and Crime 

Panel (copy enclosed). 
(Pages 27 - 36) 

 

 



 

 

 

12   ACCOUNTABILITY FRAMEWORK 
 

To receive a report from the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner (copy enclosed). 

(Pages 37 - 48) 
 

 

13   REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2020/21 
 

(1) Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner Budget 
Report 

 
To receive a report from the Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner (copy enclosed). 
 

(2) Cumbria Constabulary Budget Report 
 

To consider a report from Cumbria Constabulary (copy enclosed). 
(Pages 49 - 52) 

 

 

14   UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS 

 
To consider a report from the Monitoring Officer (Cumbria County 

Council) (copy enclosed). 
(Pages 53 - 54) 

 
 

15   PANEL UPDATE REPORT 

 
To consider the Panel Briefing from the Senior Policy and Scrutiny 

Project Officer (Cumbria County Council) (copy enclosed). 
(Pages 55 - 58) 

 
 

16   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

 
The next meeting of the Panel will be held on Thursday 

14 October 2021 at 10.30 am in the Council Chamber, County 
Offices, Kendal, LA9 4RQ. 

  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 
INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - if you wish to 

inspect Minutes or Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have 
any other general queries about the meeting, please contact: 

 
Lynn Harker, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Cumbria House, 

117 Botchergate, Carlisle, Cumbria CA1 1RD 
 

Telephone No: 07825340229 



 

CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 

Minutes of a virtual Meeting of the Cumbria Police and Crime Panel held 
on Thursday, 18 March 2021 at 10.30 am. 

 

 
PRESENT: 

 
Mr W McEwan (Cumbria County Council) (Chair) 

 
Mr RK Bingham, Cumbria County Council 

Miss HJ Fearon, Cumbria County Council (Vice-Chair) 
Mr KR Hamilton, Barrow Borough Council 

Ms R Hunter, Independent Co-opted Member 
Mr J Little, Independent Co-opted Member 

Mr P McSweeney, South Lakeland District Council 
Mr K Meller, Carlisle City Council 

 
Also in Attendance:- 

 

Mrs L Harker - Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Ms C Killeen - Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Advisor 

Mr R Marshall - Joint Chief Finance Officer, Office of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner 

Mr P McCall - Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) 
Mrs G Shearer - Deputy Chief Executive - Office of the Police and 

Crime Commissioner 
Mr B Spencer - Group Solicitor/Deputy Monitoring Officer 

Ms V Stafford - Chief Executive, Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner 

 
  

PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN 
THE PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND 

PRESS 

 

 

 

The Chair welcomed Clare Killeen, Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Advisor, 
to her first meeting of the Panel. 

 
 

29 ROLL CALL FOR MEMBERS AND OFFICERS 
 

It was noted that the above members and officers were present at the 
meeting. 

 
 

 

5

Agenda Item 8



 

30 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Ms M Bellis, Ms D Holden and 

Mr M Johnson. 
 

 

31 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

There were no declarations of interest on this occasion. 
 

 
32 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
RESOLVED, that the press and public be not excluded from the 

meeting for any items of business on this occasion. 
 

 
33 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 
There were no items of public participation to be considered at this 

meeting. 

 
 

34 MINUTES 
 

With reference to minute 23 (Minutes) – the Chair confirmed that initial 
correspondence had been received regarding CCTV in Barrow Park and a 

further update was still awaited. 
 

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the meeting held on 28 January 2021 
be confirmed as a correct. 

 
 

35 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING QUARTER 3 
 

(1) Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner Budget Report 

 
The Panel received a report from the Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner (OPCC) which provided the Commissioner’s Financial 
Summary 2020/21 forecast as at 31 December 2020.   

 
Members noted expenditure and income variances which included 

reductions in staffing of £9k and transport £4k, offset by increases in 
printing, catering and supplies and services of £13k.  It was explained 

there was additional expenditure on premises of £150k; this was mainly  
 

 

6



 

£82k on increased repair and maintenance plus additional cleaning which 

amounted to £90k (both as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic), 
increased business rates of £49k and £16k on other premises, offset by 

reductions in utilities of £87k. 
 

The Panel also noted there was increased expenditure on insurances of 

£62k, a £81k reduction in investment income and statutory accounting 
adjustments of £3k.  It was explained there was £46k of funding 

provided to the Constabulary with a small overall underspend forecast.  
Members were informed that additional net expenditure had been 

incurred in response to COVID 19 which included PPE, sanitisers, ICT to 
facilitate homeworking, overtime and reduced income.  However, this had 

been largely offset by a combination of government grants in respect of 
lost income, PPE reimbursements and additional patrols and savings to 

in-year budgets as a result of reduced activity in areas such as travel, 
fuel and training during the pandemic. 

 
Members welcomed the Constabulary recruitment plan in relation to 

Operation Uplift which continued to proceed well. 
 

(b) Cumbria Constabulary Revenue Budget 2020/21 

 
The Panel considered a report from Cumbria Constabulary which provided 

details of the Constabulary’s Revenue Budget Monitoring 2020/21.   
 

Members were informed that the forecast spend on Operation Uplift 
reflected early achievement of the Constabulary’s recruitment target of 

an additional 51 FTE officers from phase 1 in 2020/21 and the 
commencement of phase 2 which was largely planned and budgeted 

through the Workforce Plan.  The Panel was informed, however, that a 
conscious decision to progress recruitment slightly ahead of schedule had 

been made, which had contributed to the overspend on police pay.  It 
was explained that staffing in support of the additional recruitment and 

servicing the additional officers was currently forecast to underspend by 
£169k; this related to requirements in Learning and Development and 

ICT, the provision of which were currently under review. 

 
The Panel received a breakdown of main Operation Lectern costs which 

included officer pay and overtime costs on COVID-19 enforcement 
activities of £288k, first aid/PPE equipment £413k, communications and 

computing £523k and a reduced income of £572k. 
 

Members noted that the forecast spend in respect of the Constabulary’s 
COVID-19 response assumed the current level of additional cleaning and 

purchase of PPE to at least 31 Mar 2021.  
 

 

7



 

Officers explained the management accounts position at December 2020 

also included savings of £919k as an indirect result of the pandemic and 
Government funding of £701k in respect of lost income and COVID-19 

enforcement.  
 

The Panel received details regarding the impact on core budgets and 

noted that with reduced activity levels in some areas savings on core 
budgets were anticipated based on the assumption that the reduced 

activity continued until at least the end of March 2021.  It was explained 
the main assumption was in relation to Operation Lectern and reflected 

the view that the current changed activity levels would continue for the 
remainder of the financial year. 

 
The Panel discussed the potential use of electric vehicles.  The 

Commissioner explained that currently electric vehicle commitment was 
very limited due to their performance but that the Force was proactively 

investigating how they could utilise technology in future.   
 

RESOLVED, that the report be noted. 
 

The Chair and Vice-Chair, on behalf of the Panel, congratulated the OPCC 

and Cumbria Constabulary for their well-managed budget. 
 

 
36 DELIVERY OF THE CURRENT POLICE AND CRIME PLAN 

 
The Panel considered a report which outlined the work carried out by the 

Police and Crime Commissioner and his Office during the COVID-19 
pandemic. 

 
Members were informed that following the outbreak of the Coronavirus 

Pandemic (COVID-19) and the subsequent postponement of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner elections in May 2020, the Commissioner 

determined that the priorities already set out in his Police & Crime Plan 
“Making Cumbria Even Safer”, would remain the same for 2020-2021.  

The Panel noted that the Commissioner had developed an Action Plan 

which identified key work streams for delivery during this period to 
support the Police and Crime Plan priorities.  

 
In summary, the Panel was informed that during the last year, the 

Commissioner and his Office had continued to fulfil all statutory 
obligations and business as usual activities, as well as meet the 

increasing demands associated with the pandemic.  It was explained that 
although the Commissioner and his Team had transitioned to remote 

working staff had remained engaged with each other, partner agencies 
and service providers.   

 

8



 

Members noted that every opportunity to secure additional funding had 

been explored, with the Team successfully securing a remarkable amount 
of money which had helped organisations provide an immediate response 

to the pandemic and ensure victims continued to receive the vital support 
they required.  

 

The Panel welcomed the delivery of the Home Office Safer Streets Fund 
which provided crime prevention advice, home security equipment and 

street lighting in an area affected by acquisitive crime.  Members were 
informed that Cumbria County Council had used the funding to install 

new street lighting in unlit back alleys and provided an upgrade of 
existing lighting in the front streets across the whole area.  The Panel 

highlighted that the scheme had been completed in Barrow ahead of 
schedule and within budget and asked that their thanks and appreciation 

be conveyed to Ian Harker, Lighting Manager and all officers involved in 
the delivery of the project. 

 
A discussion took place regarding the development of a Victim’s 

Communications Strategy to ensure victims were aware of how to access 
services during the pandemic.  The Panel asked if there had been an 

impact on victims coming forward during this time and whether there 

was an understanding of how effective the Strategy had been and if it 
was felt there would be a longer term impact. 

 
The Panel was informed that the Commissioner and his Office had 

undertaken a needs assessment with providers to keep abreast of the 
crisis, understand the impact on services and ensure the necessary IT 

support was available.  It was explained that the OPCC Victims Advocate 
had conducted regular assurance checks with the providers to ensure 

victims had continued to receive the right support and that this year 
there had been a phased release of additional funding to uphold this.  

 
Members were informed that feedback had suggested that engagement 

from victims had increased, particularly from males, and it was felt this 
was partly due to the digital platform which was available 24 hours a 

day.  The OPCC was confident that the additional support which had been 

put in place was having a positive effect.  In looking ahead members 
noted that work had begun on a Victims Needs Assessment with funding 

secured around hate crime and modern day slavery.   
 

The Panel was informed that the OPCC had continued to fund ‘Remedi’ to 
provide restorative justice services to victims of crime and antisocial 

behaviour across Cumbria, as well as providing mediation work to help 
resolve neighbourhood disputes or anti-social behaviour.  During the 

course of discussion the Panel asked for information regarding the  
 

 

9



 

take-up and effectiveness of the service together with comparison data 

with other police forces and it was agreed this would be provided direct 
to members.  The OPCC confirmed they were happy with its effectiveness 

and agreed to share case studies with members. 
 

Members welcomed the invaluable introduction of the Community 

Recovery Fund by the OPCC which had helped organisations establish a 
direct response to the pandemic and continued to support victims.   

 
The Panel noted that all correspondence and complaints received from 

members of the public had been addressed in a timely manner.  It was 
explained that the Commissioner continued to actively engage with the 

public during this unprecedented time and had provided important 
messages through a variety of media platforms to help enforce the 

Government guidelines and current policing practices, as well as keeping 
victims informed of services which were available.   

 
The Panel noted that the Commissioner’s Independent Custody Visiting 

Scheme had continued to be delivered; temporary arrangements had 
been put in place to ensure oversight and assurance was maintained.   

 

Members were informed that by maximising the use of technology, the 
Commissioner had also continued to maintain a proportionate and 

effective holding to account function of the Constabulary.  It was 
explained this had enabled him to maintain his accountability and 

transparency processes, reassuring the public that the Constabulary was 
delivering an efficient and effective service during the pandemic. 

 
The Panel noted that in addition to the normal duties undertaken by the 

Commissioner, he had been a member of the county’s Senior Outbreak 
Management Board and Cumbria Leaders’ Board, as well as maintaining 

regular briefing and co-ordination meetings with county MPs on the 
COVID response.  

 
During the course of discussion attention was drawn to one of the 

priorities set out in the Plan which was to ‘ensure offenders face a 

consequence for their crime’ and an article which had recently appeared 
in the local press in the south of the county regarding such a matter.  

The Commissioner was not aware of the communication and it was 
agreed further information would be sent to him for further investigation. 

 
A brief discussion took place regarding the demands on the existing 101 

telephone service and asked whether a separate number for the reporting 
of child sexual exploitation could be investigated.   

 
 

 

10



 

A member also raised a concern regarding the difficulties which had been 

encountered when trying to find the 101 e-mail address on the website 
and it was agreed Cumbria Constabulary would be asked to investigate 

this matter further. 
 

The Chair and Vice-Chair, on behalf of the Panel, thanked the OPCC for 

an informative report and congratulated them on the way they had 
managed the transition during the current pandemic. 

 
RESOLVED, that the report be noted. 

 
 

37 UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS 
 

The Panel received a report from the Monitoring Officer (Cumbria County 
Council) which advised members of any complaints received in 

accordance with the Panel’s Complaints Procedure.  The report outlined 
where appropriate, what, if any, action had been taken in respect of the 

complaints. 
 

Members were informed that as at the date of the report and since the 

previous report, no further complaints had been received and only one 
complaint, as advised in the previous report, was ongoing.  It was 

explained correspondence had been exchanged to ascertain the actual 
complaint against the Commissioner, and this complaint had now been 

put to the Commissioner.  Members noted that a response to that 
complaint was due after the date of the Panel meeting, therefore, a 

further update would be provided to the next Panel meeting. 
 

RESOLVED, that 
 

 (1) the report be noted; 
 

 (2) a further update be made available at the next 
meeting of the Panel. 

 

 
38 PANEL UPDATE REPORT 

 
Members received a report from the Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Advisor 

(Cumbria County Council) which gave an update on key issues and 
developments that had occurred since the last meeting of the Panel on 28 

January 2021.  The information detailed an Update on National Policy 
Developments, Home Office Review into the Role of Police and Crime 

Commissioners and the Cumbria Police and Crime Panel Work 
Programme. 

 

11



 

The Panel welcomed the announcement of an additional £35.5 million to 

support Violence Reduction Units to support young people at risk of 
involvement in serious violence.  During the course of discussion 

particular attention was drawn to the recent violent events in the Barrow 
area; the Commissioner acknowledged this matter and confirmed a local 

focus had been reinforced to help deal with the matters together with 

continued partnership working.   
 

The Chair emphasised the importance of community hubs and how 
integral they were to communities especially during the recovery phase 

of the pandemic; he raised his concerns regarding the sustainability of 
them due to the funding required.  The OPCC acknowledged the 

importance of hubs and informed the Panel that every opportunity was 
taken to secure additional funding into the county. 

 
A discussion took place regarding the effectiveness of community police 

officers with local knowledge.  The Commissioner confirmed that police 
officers were now stationed in 12 smaller rural towns around the county 

explaining that due to the current pandemic communities had not 
experienced the full effect of them but felt they would provide a positive 

outcome in the future.  During the course of discussion members 

highlighted and welcomed the positive community relationships which 
existed between the Police and partners throughout the county. 

 
A discussion took place regarding the targeted community support and 

partnership working with Cumbria County Council and the need to avoid 
duplication.  It was agreed the Vice-Chair would contact the OPCC Chief 

Executive with a view to investigating how the local Authority and 
Cumbria Police could work together for the benefit of the communities 

and the findings would be fed back to the County Council. 
 

RESOLVED, that  
 

 (1) the report be noted; 
 

 (2) the Panel’s Annual Report and a report on the 

Accountability Framework be considered at the next 
meeting of the Panel in July. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

12



 

39 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

 
It was noted that the next meeting of the Panel was scheduled to be held 

on Friday 9 July 2021 at 10.30 am at a venue to be agreed. 
 

 

 
The Chair, on behalf of the Panel, thanked the Commissioner and his 

Team for their support during his term of office and wished him well for 
the future. 

 
A number of community groups asked that their thanks be conveyed to 

the Commissioner for the funding and support which he had provided. 
 

The Commissioner expressed his thanks and appreciation to the Panel 
highlighting the support and positive engagement which had taken place. 

 
 

 
The meeting ended at 12.10 pm 

  

 

 

 

 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Office of the Police & Crime 
Commissioner Report 
 

Title: Police and Crime Commissioner’s 
Annual Report 2020-2021 
 
Date:  9 July 2021 
Originating Officer:   Community Engagement Officer 
 
 
Executive Summary:  
 
This report presents the text for the Police and Crime Commissioner’s fifth Annual Report, covering 
the period from 1 April 2020 to the 31st March 2021. As discussed at last year’s meeting, we have 
developed a more user-friendly format with accessibility in mind, so that a member of the public 
can easily understand how the Commissioner has carried out his role during the year. Further 
details are also provided within the public documents of the Chief Finance Officer’s Narrative 
statement in the final accounts and the Annual Governance Statement. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Panel notes the Annual Report.  
 
1.  Detail  
 
1.1. The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act (2011) requires Police and Crime 

Commissioners to produce an Annual Report for each financial year. The report must cover 
how the Commissioner has carried out his statutory functions, such as setting the budget, 
developing a Police and Crime Plan and holding the Chief Constable to account.  

 
Throughout the year, there has been numerous general and specific updates to the Panel 
on how the Commissioner has delivered the Police and Crime Plan.  The Annual Report for 
Cumbria’s Commissioner therefore highlights key areas of work undertaken in the time 
period, as well as details of priorities for the future in the Police and Crime Plan. The report 
includes: 
 

 Looks at the objectives in the Police and Crime Plan, a summary of progress to date 

 Sections on listening to the voice of the public, police response to first wave of 
Covid19, visible and effective police presence, tackling crime in Cumbria 

 A summary list of accountability and statutory duties, including Public Accountability 
Board, Joint Audit Committee, Ethics and Integrity Panel, and the Police and Crime 
Panel 

15

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 
1.2. The Annual Report has been set out in a way, and to a level of detail, which aims to be 

interesting and informative for the public and the format for this year, includes more 
infographics and less text. 

 
1.3. The proposal is to publish the Annual Report on the Commissioner’s website and to print a 

limited number of copies, which would be available on request and available at surgeries, 
events and to partners. 

 
1.4.  This approach builds on the experience of what worked well last year and is felt to provide 

the best value for money. There will be an option of a translated version of the Annual 
Report for non-English speakers, and Braille and large print versions will be available. For 
those not able to access the report online, printed copies can be requested. 

 
1.5. It is intended that a media release will be issued when the Annual Report has been 

approved. 
 
2.  Supplementary information 
 
2.1 The Annual Report is appended to this covering report.  
 
3.     Implications 
  
3.1 Financial 
 The cost of printing the Annual Report has been included in the OPCC budget 
 
3.2 Legal 

The Police and Crime Commissioner has a statutory responsibility to produce an Annual 
Report. 
 

3.3 Risk 
 None 

 
3.4 HR / Equality 
 None 
 
 
 

16



www.cumbria-pcc.gov.uk

MAKING 
CUMBRIA 
EVEN SAFER

ANNUAL 
REPORT 
2020 - 2021

Photo taken before social distancing restrictions17



DEMAND ON 
CUMBRIA  
CONSTABULARY 

POLICE AND CRIME PLAN OBJECTIVES

ALWAYS PUT  
VICTIMS FIRST

5

SPEND YOUR  
MONEY WISELY

7

TACKLE CRIME  
AND ANTI-SOCIAL  
BEHAVIOUR 

3
ENSURE OFFENDERS 
FACE A CONSEQUENCE 
FOR THEIR CRIME

4

YOUR PRIORITIES 
FOR CUMBRIA

1
A VISIBLE AND EFFECTIVE 
POLICE PRESENCE

2

FOCUS OUR POLICE ON 
ONLINE AND SEXUAL CRIME 

6

SUPPORTING 
YOUNG PEOPLE 

8

Welcome to my Annual Report which 
takes a look back at the year 

2020/2021. Due to restrictions 
around the pandemic, the 

Government took the 
decision to postpone PCC 
elections until May 2021, 
which enabled me to work 
with the Constabulary and 
continue to focus on the 

needs of Cumbria residents 
during what has been for so 

many, a very challenging time. 

I think the resilience and emotional 
strength displayed throughout our 

communities has been incredible and everyone who has 
played a role in keeping the county safe, should be proud. 
In particular, I would like to thank all of our frontline police 
officers, PCSOs, staff and volunteers for their work over 
the last year. Policing the pandemic has been a huge 
challenge in which we have all had our civil liberties 
restricted in a way which is totally alien to us in this country, 
with constantly changing regulations and advice, it has not 
been easy for either the public or the police who have had 
to be on the frontline facing the pandemic throughout.  

In the last 12 months, there has been a sustained fall in 
recorded crime nationally and also here in Cumbria. 
Understandably, although for 2020/2021 overall crime has 
fallen by 18.8 %, that equates to a decrease of 7,237 
crimes over the last 12 months, demand on the police 
service has remained significant, with officers working 

alongside partners to tackle the pandemic and limit the 
spread of the virus. As seen nationally, the reduction in 
crime is largely due to the impact of the pandemic and as 
society returns to some form of normality over the next  
12 months, we anticipate these figures will rise. 

As a result of money raised through the council tax, and 
the Government’s national officer uplift programme, I am 
also very pleased that in the recruitment drive for 
2020/2021, the Constabulary have exceeded their targets. 
Police officer numbers currently stand at 1216 and 
Cumbria is well placed for any future challenges. 

Public engagement is clearly an important part of the job as 
PCC, and during the year I have continued to run surgeries, 
attended community meetings, and hosted numerous focus 
groups and Facebook Live events, to hear first-hand the 
views of local people about policing priorities in the areas 
where they live. I am grateful for everyone that has been in 
touch with feedback and I have been able to share your 
concerns with the Chief Constable and work together to 
further improve our policing service in Cumbria. 

Policing and keeping our county safe is a shared task for 
us all: public, third sector and so many volunteers, and I 
am grateful to everyone who has worked in collaboration 
with us, to make Cumbria one of the safest places to live 
and work in the country. 

With my very best wishes. 

Peter McCall 
Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria

1ST JANUARY -  
31ST DECEMBER 2020

£389,482 DISTRIBUTED 
THROUGH MINISTRY OF 
JUSTICE FUNDING FOR 
VICTIM SUPPORT 
SERVICES IN CUMBRIA 

598 QUALITY SERVICE 
POLICE ISSUES (QSPIs) 
REPORTED BY MEMBERS OF 
THE PUBLIC TO THE PCC

642  RESPONSES TO THE 
PUBLIC CONSULTATION 
ON THE COUNCIL TAX 
PRECEPT  

25 FACE TO FACE ONLINE 
FOCUS GROUPS

5,000 RESPONSES TO THE 
CALL IT OUT CAMPAIGN, 

LAUNCHED BY PCC

8 MONTHLY ONLINE 
PUBLIC SURGERIES

£436,944 DISTRIBUTED 
THROUGH HOME OFFICE 

FUNDING FOR SAFER 
STREETS IN SALTHOUSE 

AREA, BARROW

96 EXTRA OFFICERS RECRUITED 
OVER LAST 3 YEARS AS PART OF 
THE GOVERNMENT OPERATION 

UPLIFT INITIATIVE, 51 EXTRA 
POLICE OFFICERS RECRUITED

OVERALL TOTAL £222,689 
DISTRIBUTED THROUGH 

PCC GRANTS

THE YEAR IN NUMBERS

MOJ

o 

18



39%

13.9%

Number of incidents  
the police dealt with

Overall crime  
dropped by  

13.9% 
between  

March – Sept 2020

5%

5%43%

39%

4627 Incident numbers 
of reported crime 

dropped by

Anti-social (ASB) 
increased as many  
of the COVID-19  

related incidents were 
categorized as ASB

Domestic abuse 
incidents increased 

and 2,656 were 
reported

Child exploitation 
incidents increased 

and 341 were 
reported

  Apparent suicides 
increased to 50

*In comparison to the same period in the previous year

POLICE RESPONSE TO FIRST WAVE COVID-19  
As a result of the first national lockdown crime figures from March – September 2020 (Source: Cumbria Constabulary)

77%

of respondents supported the 
police’s approach to engage and 

advise before issuing a fixed 
penalty notice

66%

of respondents said they  
trusted the police to use  

their powers fairly

813

Fixed Penalty  
Notices issued 

ENGAGE EXPLAIN ENFORCEENCOURAGE

When asked if they  
would pay 55p extra  
a month for the council  
tax precept (based on  
a band D property)

WE ASKED, YOU SAID, WE DID

69% yes

Significant boost to  
rural areas with dedicated 
officers in Alston, 
Ambleside, Appleby, 
Brampton,Dalton,Keswick,  
Longtown, Millom, Kirby 
Stephen, Ullswater, Wigton 
and Windermere

Concerns 
over police 

visibility

Continuing with the installation  
of CCTV (taking the total to 80 
cameras across the county) with 80 
cameras planned across the county

Phase two  
of CCTV

101

Have been recruited in  
the last three years 

Additional 
96 Officers

Members of the public  
are encouraged to report 
information for non-
emergency crimes or 
incidents online, by visiting 
www.cumbria.police.uk

Time taken 
to answer 
101 calls

4

7.7% reductionPublic order offences  
dropped to 3,900 from 4,226

14.2% reductionRobbery  
dropped to 121 from 141

14.4% reductionSexual offences  
dropped to 1,243 from 1,452

15.5% reductionViolence against the person 
dropped to 13,533 from 16,018

18.8% reductionOverall crime 
dropped to 31,333 from 38,570

25.7% reductionArson & criminal damage 
dropped to 4,245 from 5,711

32.7% reductionOther theft offences 
dropped to 3,715 from 5,521

33.8% reductionOffences against a vehicle 
dropped to 704 from 1,063

23.9% increaseDrug offences 
increased to 1,142 from 922

RECORDED CRIME IN CUMBRIA 
FROM APRIL 2020 TO MARCH 2021 COMPARED TO THE PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR

5.8% reductionAntisocial behaviour 
dropped to 6,861 from 7,286

NB If incidents relating to a breach of Covid regulations are included then there were 11,251 ASB incidents, an increase of 53% when compared to the previous year (7,354)

19



LISTENING TO THE VOICE  
OF THE PUBLIC

Focus groups with councils, local 
charities, community groups 

Focus groups with officers from 
North, South, West, HQ, Chief 

Constable, Sheriff Lord Lieutenant 

Face to face meetings  
with rural officers and  

latest recruits

Monthly  
online surgeries

ICV volunteer team  
online meeting

Online summer  
engagement days  

in North, South, West

Breakdown of funds (Property fund and COVID-19 fund) that involved young people

The PCC has monitored the Constabulary to ensure they achieved:

Consultation surveys Council 
Tax, Hate Crime, Dog Theft, 
Dangerous Driving, Annual 

Summer Survey  
(joint with the Constabulary) 

VISIBLE AND EFFECTIVE POLICE PRESENCE

96 Number of 
additional officers 
in last 3 years

1216 Number of Police 
Officers 2020 - 2021 
(establishment)

rural
Neighbourhood policing 
enhanced with dedicated 
officers based in rural 
communities 
in Alston, Ambleside,  
Appleby, Brampton, Dalton, 
Keswick,  Longtown, Millom, 
Kirby Stephen, Ullswater, 
Wigton and Windermere

SUPPORTING YOUNG PEOPLE -  
IN LOCAL PROJECTS, SOCIAL GROUPS, 
INITIATIVES AND ACTIVITIES

£35,212    
PROPERTY FUND  
YOUNG PEOPLE PROJECTS

£11,770 
SAFER ROADS  
AROUND SCHOOL

£126,675  
COVID -19 FUND  
YOUNG PEOPLE PROJECTS

£14,839 
MENTAL HEALTH  
INITIATIVES

Li
st

en

ing
 to the voice of

Y
O

UNG PEOPLE

FOCUS GROUPS 
Copeland Youth Network 

Cando FM Radio 
Mencap 
Spiral 
Entra

Independent  
Custody Visitors  

(ICV) 
Volunteer  
Scheme

Working closely 

with partners

Police & Crime  
Panel meetings  

and  

Joint Ethics &  
Integrity Panel

Risk  
management  

and governance

Joint audit  
commitee for  
finance &  

governance

Holding the  
Chief Constable  

to account at  
Public Accountability 

Conferences

Complaint  
case  

reviews

External  
inspections &  

auditors provide 
independent  

reviews

ACCOUNTABILITY AND STATUTORY DUTIES

20



Continue with installation of Phase Two 
CCTV – which will take the total to 80 
cameras across the county 

Home Office – Safer Streets fund, aiming  
to reduce the number of burglaries in 
Salthouse area, Barrow 

Rural crime campaign – joint working with 
NFU and the force, funding Keep Safe 
initiative with latest promotion saw 30 
security kit requests in one week 

Road safety campaign commissioning 
Crimestoppers with regular public safety 
messages focusing on the fatal four 

Prepare major incident plan inline with  
Local Resilience forum 

Explored the public’s experiences of hate 
crime and their support needs through the 
STAR project hate crime survey 

Engaged with partner agencies to 
understand more about what hate crime  
is being experienced and what support is 
being provided 

PCC Community COVID-19 Recovery fund 
£182,084 to local groups 

Safer Cumbria identified key areas of work 
for how to tackle serious crime 

 

Secured over 1 million pounds for support 
services from the Government and MOJ 

PCC launched ‘Call It Out’ campaign – with 
5,000 responses 

Home Office Safer Streets fund £436,944  
for crime prevention in the Salthouse Rd  
area in Barrow 

24hour Live Chat facility, Supportline and  
My Support Space from Victim Support 

Domestic abuse local provision weekly 
updates for key partners and regular  
public messaging comms strategy developed 
and adapted accordingly throughout all 
COVID-19 lockdowns and restrictions 

Keep Safe project 369 referrals of which 
60% associated with domestic abuse 

Developing pilot for Outreach Womens 
centres in Penrith and Kendal  

PCC Property fund £46,605 to local  
3rd sector organisations 

Home Office STAR initiative, focusing on 
modern slavery and the hate crime survey 

Lead Quality Assessment framework  
to measure how criminal agencies are 
complying with the Victims Code  
of Practice 

 

Tackling crime and  
anti-social behaviour

Always put the  
victim first

Offenders face 
consequences

Focus on online  
and sexual crime

Development of adult out of court  
disposal framework with force to help 
reduce re-offending with low level crimes 

Restorative Justice (RJ) mediation work to 
resolve neighbour disputes and anti-social 
behaviour 

RJ responded to 437 victims of crime,  
9 victim-offender conferences and 65 indirect 
interventions in last 12 months 

Out of court scrutiny panel monitored around 
90 randomly selected cases, providing 
feedback, identifying areas for learning 

Chaired the Safer Cumbria Partnership and 
reviewed key strategic priorities, specifically 
in response to COVID-19 

Collaboration with regional probation and 
local partners for a review of preventative 
provision and interventions for hate crime  

MOJ COVID-19 Extraordinary Fund 
£249,482 for domestic abuse and sexual 
violence organisations due to rise in demand 
for remote service 

MOJ Rape Support fund £140,000 increasing 
Independent Sexual Violence Advisors 
capacity in the county (£60,000 (2020/21) 
and £80,000 (2021/22) 

Sexual Assault Referral Centre and Cumbria’s 
Victim Support 24hour Supportline  

Regular public messaging around national DA 
campaigns #YouAreNotAlone, Ask for Ani/Safe 
Spaces, NPCC Silent Solution 55 initiative and 
Crimestoppers - spot the signs of DA 

Media campaign for online crime, working  
in partnership with Constabulary’s Cyber and 
Digital Crime Unit and Get Safe Online  
e.g. COVID-19 vaccination scams and  
Action Fraud’s doorstep scammers 

Monthly community training events with  
Get Safe Online 

Supported NSPCC ‘ItsNotOk’ campaign  
for online child abuse 

Live Facebook public surgery for  
online crime 

Projects such as SAFA –self-harm online 
support packs, Mencap – accessible video 
explaining online safety and Time to Share 
Bereavement services for online family 
counselling funded through PCC’s COVID-19 
Community Recovery fund 

TACKLING CRIME 
IN OUR COMMUNITIES

MAKING CUMBRIA  
EVEN SAFER

21



If you would like this information in braille, audio, large print,  

easy read or in another language, please contact the Police and Crime Commissioner’s office on  

01768 217734  
or email  

commissioner@cumbria-pcc.gov.uk  

 

You can find out more information about how I am carrying out my role on my website: 

www.cumbria-pcc.gov.uk

Description                                              Budget                Actual                         (Underspend) 
                                                                    £000s                   Expenditure             / Overspend  
                                                                                                   £000s                          £000s 
Constabulary 
Police Officer Pay                                      88,239                      89,129                              890 
PCSO Pay                                                      2,272                        2,334                                 62 
Police Staff pay                                          24,387                      24,527                              140 
Non Pay Expenditure                               19,878                      18,333                        (1,545) 
Income                                                        (5,429)                      (5,592)                            (163) 
Total Constabulary                                 129,347                   128,731                            (616) 
PCC 
Office Police Crime Commissioner             812                           822                                 10 
Other PCC                                                (19,961)                   (19,858)                              103 
Total PCC                                                 (19,149)                   (19,036)                              113 
Overall Total                                          110,198                  109,695                           (503)

Overall  
Budget

PCC  
Budget

Constabulary’s 
Budget

Operation  
Uplift COVID-19

There was an 
underspend for 
the budget for 

2020/21 of 
£503,000 which 
represents 0.5% 
of the budget.

The financial results for the Police and Crime Commissioner’s revenue budget for 2020/2021  
are summarised in the table below 

£113,000 
overspend due 

to increased 
estates costs 
and reduced 
investment 

income

£616,000 underspend 
largely due to 

Operation Uplift (the 
Government’s national 
programme to recruit 

20,000 additional 
officers by 2023) and 

the Covid-19 
pandemic

Police pay almost 
£890k over budget, 

as a result of a 
conscious decision 
to recruit officers as 
quickly as possible 

to meet the 
Operation Uplift 

target

Additional PPE, ICT 
and overtime 

expenditure was 
incurred in dealing 
with the pandemic, 

but this was offset by 
Government support 

and savings on 
budgets, such as travel 

and training due to 
reduced activity

22



 

 

 

Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner 
Report 

 

Police and Crime Plan for Cumbria 
 
Date: 9 July 2021 
Originating Officer: Partnerships and Strategy Manager 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
This report provides an overview of the process for developing the next Police and Crime 
Plan for Cumbria, including how the Police and Crime Panel and the public will be consulted. 
The Plan is the key document which sets out the Police and Crime Commissioner’s 
objectives for policing and for his work with partner agencies.  
 
Recommendations 
 
That the Panel: 

i) Notes the timeline for development of the Police and Crime Plan and for the 
Panel to provide feedback on the Plan; 

ii) Participates in the public consultation and encourages residents and partner 
organisations to take part.  

 
1 Introduction and Background  

 
1.1 Police and Crime Plans are a core planning tool for Police and Crime Commissioners 

and each Commissioner is required to issue a new Police and Crime Plan as soon as 
practicable after taking office. The Plan sets out the Commissioner’s priorities for 
policing, the resources he will provide to the Constabulary to deliver that policing and 
areas on which he will focus with partner agencies to address wider crime and 
community safety issues. It will cover the period of office of the elected Commissioner 
and extend up until the end of the financial year following the next election, that is, 
March 2025, as required by statue and to allow time for a new Plan to be developed 
following the next election.  

1.2 A number of steps are involved in the process of developing the new Police and Crime 
Plan, to ensure that it reflects the needs and concerns in the county, now and in the 
future. There are also a number of statutory requirements in relation to consultation 
and national policing requirements which need to be taken into account. The 

23

Agenda Item 10



 

 

Commissioner has identified a number of priorities for his new term in office and a 
draft Plan is under development which will set out the areas of work which will 
contribute to those, to reflect local concerns and regional and national requirements.  

1.3 To support the formulation of the Plan, a detailed exercise was conducted during 2019 
to produce a Crime and Community Safety Strategic Assessment, which collated 
information on priority and emerging issues from partner agencies, as well as 
analysing a range of local and national data and strategies. Following the 
Commissioner’s election, this has been reviewed in the light of more recent emerging 
issues and the strategic direction from Government. National priorities taken into 
account include the Strategic Policing Requirement (which sets out capabilities each 
police force is required to have to support threats which span more than one police 
force area), the Policing Vision 2025, the new national Crime and Policing Measures 
and national concerns related to serious violence, disproportionality in policing and 
violence against women and girls. Local challenges have been considered related to 
the Covid-19 pandemic, as well feedback received from the public, views of victims of 
crime and learning from dip sampling of victims’ journeys through criminal justice and 
support services.  

1.4 An eight-week public consultation is currently underway to seek views on the policing 
matters most of concern to Cumbrian residents, to help formulate the Plan. Members 
of the public are being asked to complete a short online survey, which closes on 17th 
August and which is being circulated via the media and a large number of partner 
organisations. There is also the opportunity to take part in a drop-in session with 
members of the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for those who are 
unable to complete the survey online. Police and Crime Panel members are invited to 
take part in the consultation survey which is available at 
https://tinyurl.com/2mfbk2v8 and to share details of it with residents and 
organisations with which they work. The Chief Constable, criminal justice and 
community safety agencies will be consulted on an early draft of the Plan to ensure it 
covers the key issues and check its feasibility. This feedback will be collated and 
considered in order to formulate a final draft of the Plan in early Autumn. 

1.5 The final draft Plan will be brought to the Police and Crime Panel’s October meeting 
for comments. Under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act, the 
Commissioner must have regard to and publish a response to any report or 
recommendations made by the Panel on the draft Plan. In order to ensure that the 
Plan can come into force as soon as possible, the intention is to formally adopt and 
launch it in early November.  

1.6 The Police and Crime Commissioner is set out the intention to make his Police and 
Crime Plan a document for the public, showing them in a clear and accessible way 
what his and the Constabulary’s priorities will be, working with partner organisations. 
It will be underpinned by a more detailed Delivery Plan, which will be used by the 
Commissioner and his office to plan and monitor activities under each of the Police 
and Crime Objectives. A set of data measures will be used to monitor crime levels and 
aspects of Constabulary performance. This is currently under development and will 
feed into the Accountability Framework which is discussed in Item 13.  

24

https://tinyurl.com/2mfbk2v8


 

 

2 Implications 
  
2.1 Financial 

The Plan will set out the budget which the Commissioner will provide to the Chief 
Constable for the provision of policing. 

 
 
2.2 Legal 

The process for the development of the Plan has been designed to ensure statutory 
requirements in relation to the Plan are complied with.  
 

2.3 Risk 
There is a risk that the publication of the Plan will be delayed if any of the stages in 
its development take longer than planned.   
 

2.4 HR / Equality 
An Equality Impact Assessment has been developed for the draft Plan and will be 
kept under review as objectives are finalised. Members of the public who are not 
able to take part in the survey have the opportunity to join a drop-in session or to 
speak to the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner, via a representative 
agency if appropriate, about how their participation can be facilitated. 

 

25



This page is intentionally left blank



CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

Meeting date: 9 July 2021 

From: Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Advisor, 

Cumbria County Council 

 

Police and Crime Panel Chairman’s Annual Report 

2019-2021 
 
 

1.1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.2 This report asks Panel members to consider a draft Police and Crime 

Panel annual report for the period 2019–2021, attached as Appendix 1. 
 

 

2.0  ISSUES FOR THE PANEL 
 

2.1 To consider and approve the draft Police and Crime Panel annual report 
2019-2021, attached as Appendix 1. 

 
 

3.0  BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 In July 2019, the Panel approved the first Cumbria Police and Crime 

Panel Chairman’s Annual Report for 2018/19.  This provided the public 
and partners with a summary of the key issues considered by the Panel 

throughout the year, and issues for future consideration. 

 
3.2 A second annual report, for 2019/20, was not produced in 2020 due to 

the pause in Panel activity resulting from the coronavirus pandemic. 
 

3.3 Subsequently, a draft report covering the two-year period of 2019–2021 
has now been produced for Panel members’ consideration. 

 
3.4 The draft report, attached as Appendix 1, has been drafted using a 

similar format as the 2018/19 annual report.  The content is based on 
the discussion and outcome of Panel meetings over the last two years. 

 

27

Agenda Item 11



3.5 Panel members are asked to consider the draft annual report 2019-2021 
attached as Appendix 1 and identify any changes or additions they wish 

to be made. 
 

3.6 The report will then be finalised and published on the Cumbria Police and 
Crime Panel webpage. 

 
 

4.0 CONCLUSION 
 
4.1 The draft annual report reflects the range of activity undertaken by the 

Panel over the last two years and is an important tool in promoting the 
valuable work of the Panel to the public and partners. 

 

 
Clare Killeen 

Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Advisor, Cumbria County Council 

  

APPENDICES 

 
Appendix 1 – Draft Cumbria Police and Crime Panel annual report 2019-2021 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 

None  
 

 
 

Contact: Clare Killeen 
 Telephone: 07771913588 

 E-mail clare.killeen@cumbria.gov.uk 
 

28

mailto:clare.killeen@cumbria.gov.uk


 

  

APPENDIX 1  

 

 

DRAFT 

Cumbria Police and Crime 

Panel Chairman’s 

Annual Report 2019-21 

 

 

 

29



Cumbria Police and Crime Panel - Annual Report 2019-2021  

 

  

   

  

  

Cumbria Police and Crime Panel  -   Annual Report 2019-21   

Foreword from the Chair of Cumbria Police and Crime Panel  

Councillor Bill McEwan 

  

    

  
  

30



Cumbria Police and Crime Panel - Annual Report 2019-2021  

 

  

Welcome to this, our second Cumbria Police and Crime Panel Annual Report providing an update on the 
work of the Panel over the last two years. 

Our first report was published in July 2019 and we continued our vital work challenging, scrutinising and 
supporting the county’s Police and Crime Commissioner over the subsequent months.  

In 2020 the Coronavirus pandemic resulted in a pause in the Panel’s activity, but the Panel restarted its 
meetings in October 2020 and has continued to meet regularly since. 

The pandemic has had significant impacts on policing in the county and the work of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner over the last 18 months. The Panel has responded to this and continues to have a focus on 
the response to the pandemic and its impacts on policing priorities and the work of the Commissioner. 

As the county moves towards recovery from the pandemic, the Panel is focusing on the key policing 
priorities which are important to residents and communities across Cumbria. 

This report covers the two years 2019 to 2021 due to the postponement of the 2019-2020 annual report in 
Summer 2020 due to the pandemic. The last two years – and particularly the last 18 months – have been 
extremely challenging for Police and Crime Commissioners and Panels across the country, but I am proud 
of the response and the way communities in Cumbria have come together to support each other during the 
pandemic. 

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all Members of the Panel over the last two years for their 
commitment and contributions, and to the Police and Crime Commissioner and his staff for his co-operative 
and proactive approach to the Panel’s work. 

 

Councillor Bill McEwan (Chair – Cumbria Police and Crime Panel) 

 

31



Cumbria Police and Crime Panel - Annual Report 2019-2021  

 

  

Role of the Panel  

The role of the Panel is to scrutinise and support the work of the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) in 
his engagement with the public, setting policing priorities and holding the Chief Constable to account for 
the delivery of policing in the county.  

 

The Panel scrutinises the Commissioner’s Police and Crime Plan, which sets out the Commissioner’s 
policing priorities, and the Commissioner’s budget. 

The Panel’s other statutory functions include:  

• Annual scrutiny of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Council Tax Precept;  

• Holding Confirmation Hearings on the appointment of a new Chief Constable & senior officer positions 
within the Commissioner’s office; and,  

• Dealing with complaints made against the Police and Crime Commissioner. 

 

Membership  

The Panel is a joint committee and its membership is made up of elected Members of all seven local 
authorities in Cumbria - Allerdale Borough Council, Barrow Borough Council, Carlisle City Council, 
Copeland Borough Council, Cumbria County Council, Eden District Council and South Lakeland District 
Council – and independent co-opted members. 

 

 

 

 

  

32



 

 

Cumbria Police and Crime Panel work – 2019-2021    

The Panel has undertaken work over the last two years on a range of issues. 

Budget and Resources 

The Panel has scrutinised the Commissioner’s Council Tax Precept proposals for both 
2019/20 and 2020/21. The Panel supported both proposals with out qualification following 
close scrutiny of the Commissioner’s methodology and rationale, and the consultation 
carried out by the Commissioner and the responses he received. 

Panel Members also regularly receive monitoring information in relation to the budgets of the 
Police and Crime Commissioner and of the Cumbria Constabulary. The Panel has  
supported the effective management of budgets in response to reductions in core 
government funding, the unique challenges in Cumbria of policing such a large geographical 
area with a relatively small population and high numbers of tourists and visitors to the 
county, and particularly over the last year and a half, of the impacts of the coronavirus 
pandemic 

A key element of resource planning over the last 2 years has been planning and 
implementing the recruitment of additional police officers in the county as part of the 
Government’s commitment to the recruitment of an additional 20,000 police officers 
nationally. 

In Cumbria, the target of an additional 51 police officers in 2020/21 was achieved early in 
that year, and the Panel has welcomed this success and is supportive of the planning for 
future phases. Panel members continue to identify officer numbers as a priority and will 
continue to challenge and support the uplift in officer numbers in Cumbria; whilst also 
emphasising the importance of the role of Police Community Support Officers (PCSO) in 
communities and of maintaining PCSO levels in addition to increases in police officer 
numbers. 

 

Police and Crime Plan 

Over the last two years, the Panel has scrutinised the delivery of the Commissioner’s 
priorities as set out in the Police and Crime Plan 2016-20. Due to the pandemic and the 
related postponement of the 2020 Police and Crime Commissioner elections, the Police and 
Crime Plan was extended by a further year, supported by a one-year action plan for 
2020/21. 

In its scrutiny of the delivery of the Police and Crime Plan, Panel members have considered 
a range of priority policing and crime-related issues. 

 

Support for Victims 

In October 2019, the Panel considered in-depth the Commissioner’s work in relation to 
support for victims of crime and abuse. 

The Panel very much welcomed the emphasis the Commissioner had placed on this critical 
issue, and the investment made in the commissioning of a new integrated support service for 
victims across the whole county. 

In developing and implementing support for victims of crime and abuse, Panel members 
highlighted a number of key factors for consideration, including: 

 ensuring equity of access for everybody, including those without digital access or 

skills; 

 providing clear, comprehensive and accessible signposting to the range of support 

available for victims; and, 

33



 

 

 the promotion of the chance for victims to make a Victim Personal Statement which 
enables the voice and experiences of victims to be heard within the criminal justice 
system; 

 

Policing of children in Cumbria   

The Panel explored issues specifically in relation to the policing of children in the county, and 
of vulnerable children in particular. 

Panel members reflected on the circumstances in which vulnerable children are often living, 
including households where addiction, poor mental health and domestic abuse are present 
and the impact that that has. It was recognised that the Police and partner agencies 
understood the importance of identifying vulnerable children and households early and 
providing support to avoid escalation and future issues needing acute interventions from the 
Police and others. 

The Panel considered the Child Centred Policing Approach being implemented in Cumbria 
to improve outcomes for vulnerable children. This approach is expected to contribute to a 
reduction of repeat offenders and in the number of young people going missing. 

The Panel welcomed this work and committed to further consideration in the future of the 
outcomes achieved. 

 

Public experience and feedback 

The Panel continues to focus on the Police and Crime Commissioner’s engagement with 
residents and businesses, and how they inform policing priorities and activity. 

The Panel is supportive of the Commissioner’s continued focus on listening to issues and 
priorities raised by the Cumbria, and continues to provide effective challenge in ensuring 
these are addressed. 

Issues raised by the Panel over the last few months have included; 

 the importance of investment in youth activities that could contribute to preventing 
and reducing anti-social behaviour; 

 promotion of the role of the Community Trigger which requires local agencies to carry 
out a review of their response to a complaint about anti-social behaviour in an area; 
and, 

 access to the 101 service and timeliness of response. 

 

Pandemic Response 

Panel members have received regular information about the police’s role in response to the 
coronavirus pandemic over the past months and gained a good understanding of the 
challenges this has posed. 

The Panel has very much supported and valued the role of the Police in assisting 
communities and recognised the pressures of the enforcement role, and of the Police and 
Crime Commissioners continued commitment to priority issues throughout this period. 

The Panel has been able to assure itself that the Commissioner has continued to effectively 
fulfil statutory obligations during the pandemic. 

 

34



 

 

 
 

Funding 

 

Securing funding from national funding streams is critical to supporting delivery of policing 
priorities in Cumbria, and the Police and Crime Panel continues to focus on supporting the 
Commissioner to maximise investment in the county. 

 

Over the past months two funding awards have been secured from the Home Office’s Safer 
Streets Fund. This funding has enabled investment in measures to reduce neighbourhood 
crime and make local areas safer in Barrow and in Allerdale.  

 

The Panel will continue to provide support and challenge to the Commissioner in identifying 
and securing further investment to address priorities. 

 

 

Looking Ahead  

During 2021/22 the Commissioner will develop the next Police and Crime Plan, setting 
policing priorities for the period 2021-2024. The Police and Crime Panel will promote wide 
and robust public engagement in this process and will consider the draft Plan in October 
2021. 

Panel members will scrutinise the Plan and its delivery over the next 3 years. The Panel has 
identified a number of priority issues over the last two years which they will also focus on 
over the coming months. These include the experience of victims of crime and abuse and 
the support they receive, violence against women and girls in Cumbria, progress in tackling 
County Lines activity, and the effectiveness of restorative justice services in the county. 

Scrutiny of budget management and the development of Council Tax Precept proposals will 
remain a key part of the Panel’s work during 2021/22, as will the impact of the coronavirus 
pandemic. 

35



 

 

The Government’s ongoing review of the role of Police and Crime Commissioners will also 
be closely tracked, and the implications of the outcome of that review for Cumbria will be 
considered at that time. 

 

Conclusion 

The Cumbria Police and Crime Panel will continue to develop its work programme to ensure 
effective scrutiny of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s decisions over the coming year, 
building on the constructive relationship that has been developed with the Office of the 
Police and Crime Commissioner and building on the extensive knowledge and skills of Panel 
members. 

 

36



 

 

 
 

Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner 
Report 

 

Accountability Framework  
 
Date: 9 July 2021 
Originating Officer: Partnerships and Strategy Manager 
 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
This report presents a copy of the Commissioner’s Accountability Framework for 2021-2024.  
This framework enables him to discharge his statutory responsibilities, make decisions and 
hold the Chief Constable to account.  Since his election in May 2021, the Commissioner has 
reviewed this framework to ensure it remains fit for purpose. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the Panel notes this report. 
 
1. Introduction and Background  
 
1.1 Holding the Chief Constable to account is a key statutory responsibility for the 

Commissioner.  It is important that both the Commissioner and the wider public can 
see how the Constabulary is performing against the Police & Crime Plan and that it is 
subject to oversight, scrutiny, and accountability to ensure it is operating efficiently 
and effectively. 
 

1.2 Both the Commissioner and Chief Constable believe in order to support a productive 
and transparent working relationship an environment of open discussion is 
important.  There is also an equal need to have a formal accountability process that 
effectively allows the Commissioner to exercise his responsibilities and provide the 
public with an assurance that he is undertaking his duties fully and in accordance 
with the law. 

 

37

Agenda Item 12



 

 

1.3 To help facilitate this, a structure of assurance and accountability has been agreed to 
hold the Constabulary to account.  This is underpinned by a reporting schedule 
which enables effective management of performance from the top to bottom of the 
organisation and across both operational and business support departments.  
Arrangements include both informal and formal meetings within open and closed 
settings.  An overview of these arrangements is presented at Appendix One of the 
Accountability Framework document.  Appendix One will be updated following the 
finalisation of the new Police & Crime Plan which is discussed in Item 11.  This 
framework supports the Commissioners operational independence and his ability to 
direct and control the Constabulary, allowing the Chief Constable to deliver the day-
to-day business of policing.  

1.4. The Commissioner is also required to publish his key decisions to the public and 
needs to be able to demonstrate what decisions he has taken.  The Elected Local 
Policing Bodies (Specified Information) Order 2011 sets out the information that 
must be published.  The Specified Information Order has been amended (2021) and 
came into force on the 31st May 2021.  This provides that information relating to the 
Constabulary’s performance against the Government’s national priorities for policing 
must be published, as well as Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & 
Rescue Services (HMICFRS) performance reports on the Constabulary, and 
complaints handling.  The Commissioner is currently developing his approach to 
meet these requirements.  

2. Supplementary information 
 
2.1 Accountability Framework Document, including Appendix One. 

 
3. Implications 
 
3.1 Financial 
 There are none arising from this report. 
 
3.2 Legal 

There are no legal implications associated with this report.  
 

3.3 Risk 
There are no risks identified. 
 

3.4 HR / Equality 
There are no human resource or equality issues identified. 

38



 

 

Accountability Framework 2021-2024 

 

1. Background 
 

The Commissioner is the locally elected official to be the voice of the public, relating to matters of 
crime and policing.  This role has a variety of functions and responsibilities.  Key amongst these is the 
responsibility to hold the Chief Constable for their respective policing area to account. 

The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 outlines this responsibility by stating “A Police 
& Crime Commissioner must - 

 secure the maintenance of the police force for that area, and  

 secure that the police force is efficient and effective.” 

A Commissioner for the police area must hold the Chief Constable to account for the exercise of – 

 the functions of the Chief Constable, and 

 the functions of persons under the direction and control of the Chief Constable.  

The Act continues to describe a number of areas that the Commissioner must hold the Chief 
Constable to account for.  These being: 

a) The exercise of the duty under section 8(2) (duty to have regard to Police & Crime Plan). 
b) The exercise of the duty under section 37A (2) of the Police Act 1996 (duty to have regard to 

strategic policing requirement). 
c) The exercise of the duty under section 39(A) of the Police Act 1996 (duty to have regard to 

codes practice issued by Secretary of State). 
d) The effectiveness and efficiency of the Chief Constable’s arrangements for co-operating with 

other persons in the exercise of the Chief Constable’s functions (whether under section 22A 
of the Police Act 1996 or otherwise). 

e) The effectiveness and efficiency of the Chief Constable’s arrangements under section 34 
(engagement with local people). 

f) The extent to which the Chief Constable has complied with section 35 (value for money). 
g) The exercise of duties relating to equality and diversity that are imposed on the Chief 

Constable by any enactment. 
h) The exercise of duties in relation to the safeguarding of children and the promotion of child 

welfare that are imposed on the Chief Constable by sections 10 and 11 of the Children Act 
2004. 

Both the Commissioner and Chief Constable believe in order to support a productive and 
transparent working relationship between the Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner (OPCC) 
and the Constabulary an environment of open discussion is important.   

There is also an equal need to have a formal accountability process that effectively allows the 
Commissioner to exercise his responsibilities and provide the public with an assurance that he is 
undertaking his duties fully and in accordance with the law.  

To help facilitate this, a structure of assurance and accountability has been agreed to hold the 
Constabulary to account.  This is underpinned by a reporting schedule which enables effective 
management of performance from the top to bottom of the organisation and across both 
operational and business support departments.  Arrangements include both informal and formal 
meetings within open and closed settings. 

39



 

 

An overview of these arrangements is presented at appendix one and is described as the 
Accountability Framework.  Further details are provided below.   

Accountability Framework 2021-2024  

 

This framework demonstrates how the OPCC and Constabulary work jointly to provide a structure 
that is robust, open and transparent and is much more than a formalised meeting relating to matters 
of accountability.  It is part of a wider process of accountability that requires staff from the OPCC to 
link with professional leads in the Constabulary to assist the Commissioner in obtaining assurance on 
the delivery of an effective and efficient police service across Cumbria, as well as the objectives 
within the Police & Crime Plan. 

In summary, the arrangements that enable the Commissioner to monitor the performance of the 
Constabulary and scrutinises actions and decisions made are broken down into the following sub-
headings.   

Meeting Structure Overarching Aim 

OPCC Arrangements  A series of planned meetings, both informal and formal 
within open and closed settings that facilitates an open 
exchange of information between the Commissioner and 
Chief Constable   
 
In addition, the Commissioner joins front-line officers to 
see first-hand how the Constabulary is tackling crime, 
dealing with criminals and supporting victims     

Collaborative Arrangements A series of joined up meetings allowing the OPCC and 
Constabulary to: 

 Consider the strategic direction of policing.  
 Engage in ongoing dialogue across all areas of 

business, working together to identify and find 
solutions to performance challenges, including 
looking at how resources can be used.  

 Provide an opinion on the level of assurance that 
can be placed upon the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the financial, operational and 
other internal management control arrangements 
across both organisations. 

Senior members of staff from the OPCC and Constabulary 
attend these formal meetings 

Constabulary Arrangements  The Constabulary’s Governance Board structure provides 
an opportunity for members of staff from the OPCC to 
attend a series of planned meetings to gain assurance on 
how the Constabulary is doing business and delivering the 
objectives within the Police & Crime Plan 

Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of 
Constabulary and Fire & Rescue 
Service (HMICFRS) 

The Commissioner receives further assurance from 
HMICFRS which independently assesses the effectiveness 
and efficiency of the Constabulary.  The OPCC and 
Constabulary have agreed a meeting structure to support 
oversight and scrutiny of HMICFRS activity. 

 

40



 

 

The Covid-19 pandemic has changed how we conduct much of our business.  When Covid-19 was 
announced as a threat to public health in the UK, the Commissioner continued to maintain a 
proportionate and effective holding to account function of the Constabulary by maximising the use 
of technology to enable meetings to be held virtually.  As Covid-19 restrictions ease, the 
Commissioner will continue to include virtual meetings, as well as face-to-face, as part of this 
framework.     

The section below provides further detail about each specific meeting.   

2. Meeting Structure  
 

 
 
 
Commissioner and Chief Constable Weekly Meetings 

The purpose of these meetings is to allow more detailed scrutiny by the Commissioner of issues and 
areas for improvement, along with agreement of remedial actions with the Chief Constable.  It also 
ensures that the Commissioner receives regular updates on current issues and demands on the 
force.  

The Police & Crime Commissioner on the Front-line (Monthly) 

The Commissioner joins front-line officers to see first-hand how the Constabulary is tackling crime, 
dealing with criminals, and supporting victims.  The area of police business varies each month and 
depends on where the Commissioner seeks further assurance against the delivery of the Police & 
Crime Plan.    

Public Accountability Conference (PAC)  
 
The Public Accountability Conferences are chaired by the Commissioner and made up of senior 
officers from the OPCC and Constabulary.  The purpose of these meetings is to provide public 
visibility of the Commissioner holding the Chief Constable to account and a clear message to the 
Constabulary about what issues are priorities for the Commissioner.   

Annually, the Commissioner holds three PAC meetings which are divided as follows: 

 PAC Performance (Two meetings per year)  

Thematic presentations are provided at each meeting, covering in detail a priority area(s) in the 
Commissioner’s election pledge / objectives in Police & Crime Plan.  To assist with the context of 
each thematic presentation a Terms of Reference is developed by the OPCC in consultation with the 
Constabulary’s Professional Lead.  A briefing meeting takes place to discuss and draft the Terms of 
Reference, which is then finalised by Collaborative Board.   

The Constabulary also presents a detailed assessment of performance.  A Terms of Reference has 
been agreed, setting out the Commissioner and Constabulary’s approach to monitoring 
performance, focusing on demand, productivity and outcomes.  It is an agile framework that 
includes a more qualitative understanding of performance and takes into consideration the evolving 
nature of policing.  This will continue to be developed over the coming months to ensure it 
underpins the new Police & Crime Plan.   

In addition, reports from the Ethics Panel and the Joint Audit and Standards Committee, who both 
assist the Commissioner in gaining assurance on how the Constabulary does business, are 
considered at this conference.  Key decisions and budget updates are also provided.   

OPCC Arrangements 
 

41



 

 

 PAC Finance (Once per year) 

In line with the financial planning cycle, this meeting specifically reviews and agrees the policing 
budget for the next financial year. 

A reporting schedule for 2021-2024 will be agreed and published on the Commissioner’s website.  
This schedule will be flexible to take into consideration any emerging areas of concern that the 
Commissioner may require reassurance on.  

The agenda for each meeting is published on the Commissioner’s website a week before. All reports 
and the minutes arising from the meeting are published subsequently to enable transparency.  

The Independent Custody Visitors Scheme (ICV) 

All Police & Crime Commissioners in England and Wales have a duty to implement and co-ordinate 
an ICV scheme.  It is a system whereby volunteers attend police stations to check on the treatment 
of detainees, the conditions in which they are held and that their rights and entitlements are being 
observed.  Due to Covid-19 restrictions, ICVs are currently unable to physically attend custody suite 
but have continued to carry out their assessments via telephone and will continue to do so until it is 
safe to return to face to face visits.  This independent scrutiny of detainees in custody provides the 
Commissioner with assurance that anyone arrested by the Constabulary and held in custody is 
treated fairly and has access to appropriate facilities in accordance with Code C of the Police & 
Criminal Evidence Act 1984.  It also provides reassurance to the wider community. 

The work of the ICV scheme is captured in an annual report. 

 

 

Strategy Days (Four times per year) 

The strategy days provide an opportunity for all senior managers across the OPCC and Constabulary 
to come together and engage (including the Commissioner and Chief Constable).  This enables them 
to collectively review and evaluate performance and assess emerging risks and issues to establish 
the strategic direction of policing across Cumbria.   

Collaborative Board Meetings (Bi-weekly) 

To help understand Constabulary performance challenges and support appropriate reporting to the 
Commissioner at the Public Accountability Conference, a board of senior managers from both the 
Constabulary and OPCC is required.  The purpose of Collaborative Board is to support both 
organisations to work together to identify and find solutions to performance challenges, including 
looking at how resources can be used.  It provides the forum that enables discussion on the reports 
and areas of business that will be covered at the Public Accountability Conferences and it also 
reviews the delivery of the Police & Crime Plan and HMICFRS recommendations, identifying areas 
which need escalating to the Commissioner.  The board meets bi-weekly of which four of these 
meetings are assigned as the Strategy Days throughout the year.     

Action notes are produced to ensure there is a record of all discussions and expected action from 
both the OPCC and Constabulary.  These are for internal purposes only. 

 

 

Collaborative Arrangements 
 

42



 

 

Joint Audit Committee (5 x Yearly Meetings) 

The Committee is composed of four members that meet five times throughout the year in line with 
the recommendations of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountability (CIPFA).  The 
Committee provides an independent assurance function in respect of the arrangements for 
governance.  This includes assurance on financial and non-financial performance where there is an 
implication for exposure to risk or where there may be a weakening of the internal control 
environment.  This provides a significant contribution to public assurance regarding the integrity, 
internal controls and standards that are adhered to within both the OPCC and Constabulary. 

The meetings of the Committee are open to the public and all papers are published on the OPCC 
website prior to the meeting taking place.   

Ethics & Integrity Panel (Quarterly Meetings)  

This panel has four members of the public appointed to it whom meet on a quarterly basis.  The 
purpose of this panel is to provide a forum that challenges, encourages and supports the 
Commissioner and the Chief Constable in monitoring and dealing with integrity and ethical issues 
within the OPCC and Constabulary.  In order to ensure and maintain high standards of integrity and 
ethics there is a need for a robust, independent and transparent system of oversight of the way 
complaints and misconduct allegations made against police officers and staff are handled and 
investigated by the police.  The decisions taken, actions and behaviour of police officers and staff 
need to ensure public trust and confidence in policing. 

In order to ensure openness and transparency the agenda and reports are published following each 
panel meeting.  The panel provides a quarterly report to the Commissioner at the Public 
Accountability Conference meetings to provide assurance on the work they have carried out and 
scrutinised.  

Out of Court Scrutiny Panel (3 x Yearly Meetings)  
 
The Out of Court Scrutiny Panel is chaired by the OPCC and is made up of representatives from 
across the criminal justice system and victim support services who meet three times a year.  It 
provides transparency and accountability in how the Constabulary uses Out of Court Disposals, with 
particular focus on the delivery of appropriate and proportionate justice.   
 
An annual report of findings is published on the OPCC website. 
 
 
 
 
The Constabulary has a governance framework that is supported by a structure of scheduled 
meetings covering all areas of business.  The framework is aligned with the Constabulary’s vision for 
2025, providing the main principles for development, which in turn drive a series of key deliverables 
in each business area.  This provides transparency and reassurance across the organisation.  Each 
board, where appropriate attendance from the OPCC has been agreed, is described overleaf: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Constabulary Arrangements  
 

43



 

 

Name of Board Purpose  

Operations Board 
(Monthly) 

Provides assurance the Constabulary is protecting the public by 
enhancing its response to threat and risk, reinforcing its capability by 
developing its network of policing locally, regionally and nationally. 
Prioritises operational training requirements & manages diversity & 
equality issues arising from the Operations portfolio 

Workforce Board 
(Monthly) 

Provides assurance the Constabulary’s workforce framework is 
effective, proportionate, legal and supports national frameworks. 
Prioritises training, and wellbeing.  Manages risks and escalates or 
devolves as appropriate, and manages equality & diversity issues 
arising from the Workforce portfolio 

Business Board 
(Monthly) 

Provides assurance the Constabulary has an efficient business 
service that is focussed on supporting the delivery of operational 
policing and communities across Cumbria.  Manages business risks 
and equality & diversity issues and ensures business activities are 
coordinated, delivering value for money  

Digital Transformation 
Policing Board  
(Monthly) 

Provides assurance the Constabulary is maximising the visibility and 
capabilities of the workforce delivering an efficient ICT 
infrastructure, including making it easier for the public to access 
services and engage with the police.  Manages risks and equality & 
diversity issues arising from the Digital Transformation Policing 
portfolio 

Tasking & Co-ordination 
(Monthly) 

Provides assurance the Constabulary is directing it resources to deal 
with threat, risk and harm and reinforcing its capability and 
resources through collaborative working locally, regionally and 
nationally 

 
Attendance from the OPCC at each of these meetings provides an integral part of the overall 
accountability process.  It provides reassurance on emerging areas of concerns and helps to prompt 
initial discussions of what the Commissioner may require further reassurance on.  These matters are 
fed into Collaborative Board and the Commissioner is informed through his Executive Gold Team 
meetings.   
 

 
 
 
 
 

HMICFRS independently assess and report on the efficiency and effectiveness of police forces and 
policing, and the fire and rescue service, in the public interest.  They provide authoritative 
information to allow the public to compare the performance of their police force and fire and rescue 
service against others. 
 
The Commissioner meets with HMICFRS following their inspections of the Constabulary to 
understand what is working well and where the Police need to improve.  Their evidence is used to 
drive improvements in the service.   
 
 
 
 
 

HMICFRS 
 

44



 

 

The OPCC meets with the Constabulary’s HMICFRS Professional Lead on a bi-monthly basis to review 
and discuss requirements arising from HMICFRS inspections and published reports.  This provides an 
understanding of HMICFRS activity and provides direct assurance against the progress made to 
address statutory requirements both locally and nationally.  If the OPCC requires further 
reassurance, areas for concerns are raised and discussed at Collaborative Board.  To keep the public 
informed and updated, the Commissioner also maintains oversight and scrutinises the 
Constabulary’s performance against HMICFRS recommendations through his Public Accountability 
Conferences. 
 

45



This page is intentionally left blank



                                   Appendix ONE ACCOUNTABILITY FRAMEWORK - CUMBRIA OPCC & CONSTABULARY  

 Under the terms of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, Commissioners must: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. Secure an efficient and effective police for their area. 
2. Appoint the Chief Constable, hold them to account for running the force, and if necessary, dismiss them. 
3. Set the police and crime objectives for their area through a Police & Crime Plan. 
4. Set the force budget and determine the precept. 
5. Contribute to the national and international policing capabilities set out by the Home Secretary. 
6. Bring together community safety and criminal justice partners, to make sure local priorities are joined up. 

 

 

ROLE & 

RESPONSIBILITIES 

OF POLICE & 

CRIME 

COMMISSIONERS 

HOW DOES THE 

COMMISSIONER 

GAIN ASSURANCE 

ON THE POLICE & 

CRIME PLAN 

PRIORITIES? 

Your Priorities for 
Cumbria 

•Performance Public 
Accountability 
Conference 
thematic 
presentation 

•Joint OPCC & 
Constabulary 
Annual 
Consultation 
Survey

•Quality of Service 
& Policing Issues 
(QSPIs)

A Visible & Effective 
Police Presence 

•Performance Public 
Accountability 
Conference 
thematic 
presentation 

•FInance Public 
Accountablity 
Conference reports

•Ethics & Integrity 
Panel

•Independent 
Custody Visitors 
Scheme

•HMICFRS PEEL 
reports

Tackle Crime & 
Antisocial Behaviour

•Performance Public 
Accountability 
Conference 
thematic 
presentations 
(covering specific 
crime types) & 
twice yearly 
performance 
report

•Commissioner on 
the Frontline

•Monthly Force 
Tasking & 
Coordination

Ensure Offenders 
Face a Consequence

•Performance Public 
Accountability 
Conference 
thematic 
presentation

•Out of Court 
Scrutiny Panel

•Commissioner on 
the Frontline

•Monthly Force 
Tasking & 
Coordination

Always Put Victims 
First 

•Performance Public 
Accountability 
Conference 
thematic 
presentation

•Commissioner on 
the Frontline

•Completion of the 
Quality Assessment 
Framework across 
all criminal justice 
agencies

•Ethics &Integrity 
Panel

•HMICFRS PEEL 
Inspection reports

•Quality of Service 
& Policing Issues 
(QSPIs)  

Focus on Online & 
Sexual Crime

•Peformance Public 
Accountability 
Conference 
thematic 
presentation

•Monthly Force 
Tasking & 
Coordination

Spend Your Money 
Wisely

•Financial 
Regulations & 
Framework

•Finance Public 
Accountability 
Conference reports

•Joint Audit 
Committe

•Ethics & Integrity 
Panel

•HMICFRS PEEL 
Inspection reports

•HMICFRS Value for 
Money Profile

•Bluelight 
Collaboration 

Supporting Young 
People 

•Open Grants 

•Performance Public 
Accountability 
Conference 
thematic 
presentation

•Independant 
Custody Visitors 
Scheme

Commissioner & Chief Constable Weekly 
Meetings 

•Weekly meetings to touch base on 
current/emerging operational business and 
review areas of improvement, along with 
remedial actions HOW DOES THE 

COMMISSIONER 

GAIN 

ASSURANCE 

THAT THE 

CONSTABULARY 

IS DELIVERING A 

EFFECTIVE & 

EFFICIENT POLICE 

SERVICE? 

Collaborative Board 
(Bi-weekly) &

Board of senior managers 
from both the OPCC & 
Constabulary working 

together to identify and 
find solutions to 

performance challenges, 
including how resources 

can be used

Joint Audit Committee 

(5 x yearly)

Provides assurance to the 
Commissioner & Chief 

Constable on their 
arrangements for 

governance, including risk 
management and the 

integrity of the financial 
reporting and annual 
governance process

Ethics & Integrity Panel 
(Quarterly)

Supports the 
Commissioner & Chief 

Constable in monitoring 
and dealing with integrity 
and ethical issues such as 

conduct, compliants, 
quality of service

TASKING  

Provides 

assurance the 

Constabulary’s 

workforce 

framework is 

effective, 

proportionate, 

legal and 

supports 

national 

frameworks. 

Prioritises 

training, and 

wellbeing, 

Manages risks 

and equality & 

diversity issues 

Provides 

assurance the 

Constabulary 

has an efficient 

business service 

focussed on 

supporting the 

delivery of 

operational 

policing. 

Manages 

business risks 

and equality & 

diversity issues. 

Ensures 

activities are 

coordinated 

delivering value 

for money  

  

Provides 

assurance the 

Constabulary is 

maximising the 

visibility and 

capabilities of 

the workforce 

delivering an 

efficient ICT 

infrastructure, 

including making 

it easier for the 

public to access 

services and 

engage with the 

police. Manages 

risks and equality 

& diversity issues 

OPCC Arrangements Collaborative Arrangements Constabulary Arrangements 

Public Accountability Conference (PAC) 
Three times a year

•PAC Performance provides an overview of 
Constabulary performance against an agreed 
Terms of Reference and priority areas covered 
in the Commissioners election pledge, and 
Police & Crime Plan objectives.

•PAC Finance reviews and agrees the policing 
budget for the next financial year

Independent Custody Visitors Scheme 

•Provides effective oversight of police custody 
in order to ensure a safe environment for 
detainees and deliver public reassurance

The panel provides transparency and confidence in how the Constabulary uses out 
of court disposals 

Out of Court Scrutiny Panel (3 x yearly) 

EXTERNAL 

ASSURANCE Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary & Fire & Rescue Services independently assesses the effectiveness & efficiency of the Constabulary 

Provides assurance 

the Constabulary is 

protecting the 

public by 

enhancing its 

response to threat 

and risk, 

reinforcing its 

capability by 

developing its 

network of policing 

locally, regionally, 

and nationally. 

Prioritises 

operational training 

requirements & 

manages diversity 

& equality issues 

Provides 

assurance the 

Constabulary is 

directing it 

resources to 

deal with 

threat, risk and 

harm and 

reinforcing its 

capability and 

resources 

through 

collaborative 

working locally, 

regionally, and 

nationally 

 

Commissioner on the Frontline 
Monthly

•The Commissioner joins front-line officers to 
see first hand how the Constabulary is tackling 
crime, dealing with criminals and supporting 
victims

Strategy Days (4 x per year)

An opportunity for all senior managers across the OPCC & Constabulary to come 
together and engage (including the Commissioner & Chief Constable) 

47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

The Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria 

Financial Summary 2020/21 as at 31 March 2021 

Police and Crime Panel 09 July 2021 

 

P  

Constabulary Revenue Budget 

Underspend £616k (0.48%)  

Reduced Expenditure £453k (0.34%),  

Increased Income £163k (3.00%)  

(see pages 3 and 4) 

 

  
Capital Budget 

The effects of the global pandemic are being felt 

in all departments and as a result several schemes 

have been re-profiled into 2021/22.  Most of the 

planned vehicle replacements are ordered, but 

production and delivery have been delayed.  In 

relation to ICT, new agile ways of working need to 

be fully reviewed and the impact on the future 

ICT infrastructure is still to be evaluated, resulting 

in delayed expenditure.  

 

 

Treasury Management 

Investment balance 31/03/21 £9.76m  

(Up 26% from £7.24m at 31/03/20). 

 

The investment income outturn for the year was 

£15k reflecting the extremely low interest rates 

currently being received whilst prioritising the 

security of the principal funds. 

 

 

Operation Uplift 

The revenue spend on operation uplift was 

£2.033m 

 

(see page 3 for more details) 

 

 

 

Op Lectern - Covid 19 

The combined spend on the constabulary 

COVID 19 response (Op Lectern) was £1.066m 

 

(see page 3 for more details) 

 

 

Group Revenue Budget 

Group Underspend £503k (0.46%)  

Constabulary Underspend £616k (0.48%),  

PCC Overspend £113k (0.59%) 

(see page 2) 

 

49

A
genda Item

 13

http://vectips.com/tips-and-tricks/illustrate-a-cartoon-building/attachment/12-cartoon-building/#main
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=http%3A%2F%2Fclipart-library.com%2Finvest-cliparts.html&psig=AOvVaw3tWwBojImbXaSBwA1nSfQ6&ust=1590062423731000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCIj_66GywukCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAF
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.netclipart.com%2Fisee%2FhixJxx_group-of-people-clip-art-people-icon-grey%2F&psig=AOvVaw0V-UKIYMRRwLA_67OKKaJP&ust=1590062981495000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCNCq-au0wukCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAE


 

 

PCC Revenue Budget 2020/21 as at 31 March 2021 

 

 

Description Revised Provisional Provisional Provisional Projected Change in

Budget Outturn (Under)/

Overspend

(Under)/

Overspend

(Under)/

Overspend

Forecast 

DEC-20 to

2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 @ DEC-20 MAR-21

£'000s £'000s £'000s % £'000s £'000s

Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner

812 822 10 1.23% 0 10

Other PCC Budgets (19,331) (19,274) 57 -0.29% 296 (239)

Movements To / (From) Reserves (630) (584) 46 -7.30% 0 46

Total OPCC Budgets (19,149) (19,036) 113 -0.59% 296 (183)

Funding Provided to the Constabulary 129,348 128,732 (616) -0.48% (46) (570)

Net Expenditure 110,199 109,696 (503) -0.46% 250 (753)

External Funding (110,199) (110,199) 0 0.00% 0 0

Total 0 (503) (503) 250 (753)

Expenditure & Income Variances 

Office of the PCC +£10k The overspend is largely as a result of overspends on  

supplies and services which are offset by underspends on staffing. 

Other PCC Budgets +£57k  

Additional expenditure on Premises (£26k) mostly due to additional cleaning £117k 

as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, increased business rates £11k, offset by 

reductions in utilities £58k and repair and maintenance £44k.  

Increased expenditure on insurances £52k.  

Reduction in investment income £82k. 

Statutory accounting adjustments -£21k. 

Increased Grant Income -£80k 

Reduced drawdown from Reserves +£46k 

Funding Provided to the Constabulary -£616k The underspend at the year-end is 

largely as a result of reduced expenditure on non-staff budgets such as supplies and 

services (£1.6m), Other employee costs (£103k), transport costs (£79k) and increased 

income of £163k. Much of this underspend is attributable both directly and indirectly 

to the impact of the Covid 19 pandemic on the Constabulary’s activities.  These 

underspends were partially offset by additional expenditure on police pay £890k as 

a result of the deliberate decision to recruit the Constabulary share of the operation 

uplift officers ahead of target, police staff pay £140k, PCSOs £62k and third part 

related costs of £224k. 

The Constabulary recruitment plan in relation to Operation Uplift continues to 

proceed well.   

Pages 3 and 4 provide a more detailed analysis of the Constabulary revenue budget 

position. 

Details of the constabulary budget position are included on the following pages. 

The balance on the police property act fund as at 31 March 2021 was £64k.  

Details of the awards made from this fund to community bodies can be 

found on the Commissioners website.  Successful Applicants/Grant 

Agreements - Cumbria Police and Crime Commissioner (cumbria-

pcc.gov.uk) 

50

https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/successful-applicantsgrant-agreements/
https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/successful-applicantsgrant-agreements/
https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/successful-applicantsgrant-agreements/


 

 

Constabulary – Revenue Budget 2020/21 (1) 

 

  

 

Description Revised Provisional Provisional Provisional Forecast Change in

Budget Outturn (Under)/

Overspend

(Under)/

Overspend

(Under)/

Overspend

Forecast      

DEC-20

2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 @ DEC-20 to MAR-21

£'000s £'000s £'000s % £'000s £'000s

Constabulary Funding

Police Officers 88,239 89,129 890 1.01% 836 54

Police Community Support Officers 2,272 2,334 62 2.73% 56 6

Police Staff 24,387 24,527 140 0.57% 172 (32)

Other Employee Budgets 2,084 1,981 (103) (4.94%) (43) (60)

Transport Related Expenditure 1,995 1,916 (79) (3.96%) (163) 84

Supplies & Services 13,529 11,942 (1,587) (11.73%) (980) (607)

Third Party Related Expenses 2,270 2,494 224 9.87% 125 99

Total Constabulary Funding 134,776 134,323 (453) (0.34%) 3 (456)

Income (5,429) (5,592) (163) 3.00% (49) (114)

Total Constabulary Funding Net of Income 129,347 128,731 (616) (0.48%) (46) (570)

Operation Lectern (Covid-19 Response) 

Breakdown of main Op Lectern costs: 

• Officer pay and overtime on Covid enforcement activities. £363k. 

• Police Doctors & Surgeons £345k of First Aid / PPE equipment. 

• Communications & Computing £392k includes ICT Hardware Purchases 

£331k (laptops etc.), additional licensing £38k and Network Hardware 

Purchases £15k. 

• Loss of routine Income £413k.  

The above costs were offset by Government reimbursement of costs totalling 

£1.159m in relation to medical grade PPE, enforcement activities and 75% of lost 

income. 

The outturn also includes savings of £903k on core budgets as an indirect result of 

the pandemic reducing normal levels of activity. A breakdown of these savings is 

shown below: 

Impact on Core Budgets 

With reduced activity levels in some areas the following savings on core budgets 

have been made: 

• Appleby Fair £111k 

• Training £210k 

• Vehicle Hire, Mileage & Public Transport £152k 

• Accommodation & Subsistence £178k 

• Vehicle Fuel £252k 

• Total Savings £903k 

 

Operation Uplift 

The provisional outturn on Operation Uplift reflects having recruited its target of 

an additional 51 FTE officers by June 2020, almost a year ahead of the deadline 

of the 31 March 2021. 

This was largely planned and budgeted through the workforce plan.  However, a 

conscious decision to progress recruitment slightly ahead of schedule was made, 

which has contributed to the overspend on police pay shown above. 

Staffing in support of the additional recruitment and servicing the additional 

officers underspent by £171k.  This relates to requirements in Learning and 

Development and ICT the provision of which are currently under review. 

51



 

 

Constabulary – Revenue Budget 2020/21 (2) 

 

 
Pay Expenditure 

Police Officers +£890k Increase is largely as a result of a deliberate decision 

to recruit operation uplift phase 1 and 2 officers in advance of the target 

date and a number of acting / temporary promotions £736k, additional 

spend re Op. Lectern £111k plus additional overtime in Crime £108k, TP 

£108k, Uplift £39k.  These increases are partially offset by a reduction in 

costs of Police Pensions -£212k. 

PCSOs +£62k  Additional spend is principally due to changes to the original 

workforce plan including starting 1 FTE above budgeted FTE and reduction 

in the number of leavers in the year compared to original forecast. 

Police Staff +£140k The overspend is principally as a result of additional 

spend in respect of workforce plan changes £83k, additional costs of 

Operation Lectern £116k and other overtime (Comms Centre etc.) £113k, 

offset by reduced spend on Operation Uplift -£172k as some L&D and ICT 

posts have not been recruited. 

Non-Pay Expenditure 

Other Employee -£103k  Includes reductions on recruitment costs £16k, welfare £15k, 

agency £33k, training £233k (after removing £210k savings due to COVID 19) offset by 

additional costs of management of change £135k and the apprenticeship levy £58k.  

Transport -£79k Includes savings on fuel £99k & travel costs £24k offset by maintenance 

and other transport costs £44k. Note though that savings on fuel (£252k) and travel 

expenses (£151k) due to reduced travel and changes in activity levels as part of our 

response to COVID 19, have previously been removed from this budget. 

Supplies & Services -£1,587k  The main changes are summarised below: 

• Increased costs in relation to Operation Lectern £789k (re PPE, First Aid, ICT, Office 

Equipment etc.). 

• Increases to provisions for Insurance Liabilities & Legal Claims £470k. 

• Offset by a combination of Covid-19 grants and indirect savings due to reduced activity 

levels as a result of the covid-19 pandemic, net of lost income that the Constabulary 

cannot reclaim from the government, resulting in a total net saving £1,354k. 

• Underspending on other areas Forensics £40k, Catering £67k, Office Equipment, 

Uniform and Custody £254k, Airwave & Other ICT £536k, Custody Medical Contract 

£53k, Accommodation & Subsistence £132k, Consultants £81k, Contingency £260k 

Other £67k. 

Third Party Payments +£224k  New contributions re LRF manager, NPoCC SIB funding, an 

increase in our contributions to national ICT costs, increase in our NPAS contribution, and 

an extension to Op. Elter. 

Income 

Income -£163k After removing £413k of income lost due to COVID 19 (Driver 

Awareness Income, Costs Awarded to Police, Kendal Calling and other events) 

the additional income arises, in the main due to abnormal loads income £74k, 

mutual aid £114k and other reimbursed services £63k.  These are offset by 

reductions in POCA income £30k, Sale of Goods and Assets and Fees and 

Charges £58k. 

Changes in Revenue Budget Position Quarter 3 to year End 

December to March – The main change between figures reported at the end of December and year end is in relation to costs incurred in relation to the response to the covid 

pandemic, government grants received to offset these and ongoing savings to core activity as a result of the impact of the pandemic. The resulting underspend has been 

transferred to a Covid 19 recovery and renewal reserve to cover the costs of future changes to work arrangements arising from the pandemic.  

52



 

CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

Meeting date: 9 July 2021 

From:  Monitoring Officer (Cumbria County Council) 

 
 

UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report advises members of any complaints received in 

accordance with the Panel’s complaints procedure.  The 
report outlines where appropriate, what, if any, action has 

been taken in respect of the complaints. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 Members are asked to note the report. 

3.0 BACKGROUND 

3.1 At the meeting on 15 October 2018 the Panel agreed to adopt a 
revised complaints procedure to consider non-criminal complaints 

in relation to the Police and Crime Commissioner or other office 

holders. 

3.2 The Procedure  

3.2.1 As part of the revised procedure, the Monitoring Officer of 
Cumbria County Council will consider all complaints matters in 

the initial stages.  If the Monitoring Officer cannot broker a 
resolution, a sub-committee of the Panel should be convened to 

consider the matter further. 

53

Agenda Item 14



 

3.2.2 The Panel will receive a report to each meeting detailing the 
position with all ongoing complaints, and requesting a sub-

committee be convened if appropriate.   

4.0 DETAILS OF COMPLAINTS RECEIVED 

4.1 As at the date of this report and since the previous report, no 

further complaints have been received and only one complaint, 
as advised in the previous report, is ongoing.  Correspondence 

was exchanged to ascertain the actual complaint against the 

Commissioner, and this complaint was put to the Commissioner.   

 The OPCC’s view of the subject matter of the complaint is that it 
is not properly within the remit of Police and Crime Panel.  This is 

an important point that needs resolving finally and, on behalf of 
the Panel, permission is being sought from the Home Office (in 

accordance with the terms of the grant to the host authority for 

the Panel) for the Panel to be able to seek Counsel’s advice on 

the point.  

 
Iolanda Puzio 

Monitoring Officer, Cumbria County Council 
 

June 2021 
  

 
 

APPENDICES 
 

None 
 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

No background papers  
 

 
Contact: Ben Spencer 

E-mail: ben.spencer@cumbria.gov.uk 
Telephone: 07919 297914 

 

54

mailto:ben.spencer@cumbria.gov.uk


CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

Meeting Date: 9 July 2021 

From: Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Advisor, 

Cumbria County Council 

 

 

PANEL UPDATE REPORT 

 

1.1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.2 This report updates the Police and Crime Panel on key issues and 

developments that have occurred since the last meeting on 18 March 
2021. 

 
 

2.0  ISSUES FOR THE PANEL 
 
2.1 Note the range of information and activity set out in the report. 

 
2.2  Identify any areas on which Panel Members require further information 

or other action. 

 
 

3.0  BACKGROUND 
 

Update on National Policy and Legislation 

 
 Police, Crime, Sentencing and Courts Bill 

 
3.1 The Police, Crime, Sentencing and Courts Bill reaches the Report Stage 

in the House of Commons on 5 July and is nearing the halfway point of 
its Parliamentary journey. The Bill proposes a large number of measures 

including: 
 

 A duty on the Secretary of State to publish an annual report on 

progress against the delivery of the Police Covenant; 

 A duty on specified authorities, including local authorities and chief 

officers of police, to collaborate with each other to prevent and 

reduce serious violence; 

55

Agenda Item 15



 A duty on relevant authorities to undertake offensive weapons 

homicide reviews; 

 Establishment of a statutory framework for the extraction of 
information from digital services for the purposes of the 

prevention, detection, investigation or prosecution of crime, 

safeguarding purposes and the purposes of investigating deaths; 

 Strengthened police powers in respect of non-violent protests; 

and, 

 Introduction of a new offence and revisions to existing powers in 
respect of unauthorised encampments. 

 
3.2 The Bill’s progress is being closely tracked, and further analysis of the 

implications will be provided at the appropriate time. 
 

 Domestic Abuse Act 2021 

 
3.3 The Domestic Abuse Act 2021 received Royal Assent on 29 April 2021.  

The Act’s measures include: 
 

 Creating a statutory definition of domestic abuse; 

 Establishing the office of Domestic Abuse Commissioner; 

 Creating a Domestic Abuse Protection Notice and Domestic Abuse 

Protection Order; 

 Placing a duty on local authorities to give support to victims of 
domestic abuse and their children in refuges and safe 

accommodation; and, 

 Requires local authorities to grant new secure tenancies to social 

tenants for reasons connected with domestic abuse. 
 

3.4 Later this year, the Government is due to publish a new Domestic Abuse 

Strategy alongside a Violence Against Women and Girls Strategy. 
 

 Information Publication Requirements 
 

3.5 On 31 May 2021, new Regulations came into force which add to the list 
of information that must be published by Police and Crime 

Commissioners. The Regulations (The Elected Local Policing Bodies 
(Specified Information) (Amendment) Order 2021) require that 

information relation to the following must also be published: 
 

 The force’s performance against the Government’s national 
priorities for policing, and that this statement is published at the 

same time as the Police and Crime Plan; 

56



 Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue 

Services (HMICFRS) performance reports on the force; and. 

 Complaint handling. 
 

3.6 The order specifies that this information must be published in a 
prominent place on the elected local policing body’s website by 31 July 

2021. 
 

3.7 These changes resulted from the first part of the Home Office Review 
into the role of Police and Crime Commissioners. The second part of the 

review focuses on longer-term reform, including a review of expansion of 
PCC powers, and is due to report later this year. 

 
 Funding Opportunities 

 

3.8 The second round of the Home Office’s Safer Streets Fund closed in 
March 2021 and on 3 June 2021 it was announced that a total of £18.3 

million of this funding had been awarded to 40 areas across England and 
Wales. 

 
3.9 Cumbria’s Police and Crime Commissioner was awarded £311,358 for 

activity in the St. Michael’s ward in Allerdale. This funding is expected to 
be spent on a number of crime prevention measures, including the 

delivery of Safer Homes Packs and advice to 1300 homes, targeted 
intervention to 150 homes previously targeted by criminals, updating of 

street lighting, a public realm lighting scheme, and additional CCTV. 
 

3.10 A third round of the Safer Streets Fund was also launched on 3 June 
providing the opportunity for PCCs to bid from a fund of £25 million for 

activities that go beyond essential environmental measures. Bids for 

projects to improve the safety of women and girls on the streets are 
encouraged. 

 
 Public Consultation Survey – Cumbria PCC’s Police and Crime 

Plan 2021-2024 
 

3.11 In late June the Cumbria PCC launched a public consultation survey on 
police priorities to inform the development of the new Police and Crime 

Plan for 2021 – 2024. The consultation closes on 17 August 2021 and is 
accessible at Have Your Say on the Future of Policing - Cumbria Police 

and Crime Commissioner (cumbria-pcc.gov.uk). 
 

 
 

 

 
 

57

https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/have-your-say-on-the-future-of-policing/
https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/have-your-say-on-the-future-of-policing/


Public Accountability Conference 
 

3.12 There are some forthcoming meetings which may be of interest to Panel 
Members. The next Public Accountability Conference is scheduled for 12 

July 2021 11.00am – 1.00pm via Teams  PAC meeting - Cumbria Police 
and Crime Commissioner (cumbria-pcc.gov.uk). 

 
 

4.0 CONCLUSION 
 
4.1 The Cumbria PCC is expected to present the draft Police and Crime Plan 

2021-2024 to the Police and Crime Panel at its next meeting in October. 
At this point it is proposed that the Panel review its work programme and 

identify issues for further investigation. 

 
 

Clare Killeen 

Strategic Policy and Scrutiny Advisor, Cumbria County Council 

  

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS  

 

None  
 

 
 

Contact: Clare Killeen 
 Telephone: 07771913588 or e-mail clare.killeen@cumbria.gov.uk 

 

58

https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/event/pac-meeting-4/
https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/event/pac-meeting-4/
mailto:clare.killeen@cumbria.gov.uk

	Agenda
	8 Minutes
	9 Cumbria Police and Crime Commissioner's Annual Report 2020-21
	PCC Annual Report Appendix

	10 Police and Crime Plan for Cumbria
	11 Cumbria Police and Crime Panel Chairman's Annual Report 2019-21
	Chairman's Annual Report Appendix

	12 Accountability Framework
	Accountability Framework Covering Information
	Accountability Framework App 1

	13 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2020/21
	PCP 2021-07-09 Financial Summary 2020-21 (Pages 1-2)
	PCP 2021-07-09 Financial Summary 2020-21 (Pages 3-4)

	14 Update on Complaints
	15 Panel Update Report

